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Detail from The Hamburg-Amerika Line Poster (c.1900) of the SS Deutschland, painted by Hans Bohrdt (1857-1945), image
now in the public domain. Strangers in the West book cover published by Kalimah Press in 2016. Mark Twain's Hartford House in
1994, courtesy of the Mark Twain House. The Century Association in 1935. Photo courtesy of Museum of the City of New York. Media,
PA bank constructed in 1900. Photo courtesy of Wikimedia Commons. Students Samantha Zavala and Brooke Fernandez are

surrounded by VSNY Board members after the March 20 fundraiser for the Margot Gayle Fund.

The original intention was to limit the number of
members to 100, but by the time the Association
moved into its 43" Street home, it had about 8oo.
Today the Association’s members include over
2,000 authors, artists and amateurs in letters

and fine arts.
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EXPLORING THE MEDIA MIX

Media, PA was incorporated in 1850 at the same
time it was named the county seat of Delaware
County. Located 13 miles west of Philadelphia,
Media retains numerous architectural treasures
from the Victorian era. Our tour will explore

the grounds of the Delaware County courthouse
built in 1851-71. On a walking through the State
Street Historic District and Legal Row we will stop
and tour the Institute of Science building that
dates from 1867. We will visit a Victorian home
dating from the 1860s and The Media Presbyte-
rian Church completed in 1855. The first church
constructed in Media, it was designed in classic
Greek Revival style by John McArthur, architect of
the Philadelphia City Hall. Dr. Samuel Lemon, the
author of Go Stand upon This Rock (2014), will give
atalk on the Campbell AME Church (that came
directly out of The Mother Bethel Church) and his
Quaker/African American history of Media from
the Civil War until the early 1920s. Our lunch will
be at Lotus Farm to Table. Residents proudly call
Media “Everybody’s Hometown.” This is much
more than a slogan. It describes a real state of
mind.
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FUNDRAISER
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To benefit the Chapter’s Margot Gayle Fund for
the Preservation of Victorian Heritage, VSNY
sponsored an event at St. Peter’s Episcopal
Church, 346 W. 20t St., in Manhattan on
Monday, March 20.

The evening began with a showing of Our
Vanishing Legacy, following an introduction by
the documentary’s writer and producer, Gordon
Hyatt. The Rev. Stephen Harding, interim rector
of St. Peter’s, shared problems and progress made
in the restoration of the church. The roof of the
structure, built in 1836-38, is now water-tight, but
scaffolding continues to surround the building.
The church received a grant from the Margot
Gayle Fund in 2014 for a conditions survey of its
stained glass windows. Two students involved
in the cleanup of the Wyckoff-Sneidicker Family
Cemetery in Woodhaven, Queens, Brooke
Fernandez and Samantha Savala, who attend St.
Thomas the Apostle Catholic Academy, reported
on research sparked by names on tombstones
uncovered in the effort that garnered a Margot
Gayle Fund grant last year. Sponsored by the
Woodhaven Cultural & Historical Society, restora-
tion of the cemetery has involved removal of
weeds and debris accumulated over 8o years of
neglect. A reception followed the program.

Established in 2003, the Margot Gayle Fund
for the Preservation of Victorian Heritage
makes monetary grants for preservation or
conservation of Victorian era material culture
in the New York metropolitan area. Each year
5% of the principal in the fund is available for
grants. With bank rates being what they are,
the need to replenish the fund has become
an annual problem. Growing the fund is, of
course, also an ambition of the fundraiser.

THE
VICTORIAN
SOCIETY
NEW YORK

Founded in New York City

in 1966, the Victorian Society
in America is dedicated

to fostering the apprecia-
tion and preservation of our
nation’s 19t-century heritage
as well as that of the early
20" century (1837-1917).

The Victorian Society New
York (VSNY), the oldest of
numerous chapters now flour-
ishing throughout the USA,
is an independent nonprofit
organization affiliated with
the national Society.

Membership contributions

at any level help to provide
the foundation for all that

we do— from our lecture
series, walking tours and
excursions, to our grant and
awards programs honoring
worthy preservation projects
in New York. Members also
help provide scholarships

to the Victorian Society in
America Summer Schools for
advanced study. Donations to
the Margot Gayle Fund make
possible monetary grants for
preservation and conservation
of Victorian material culture in
our region.



A New Chapter in the History of

The Victorian Society in America

In January 1970, 69 members in

the New York metropolitan area
petitioned the Victorian Society in
America for permission to organize

a New York chapter. It was an odd
circumstance—petitioning to be a
chapter of an organization of which
it had been the entirety! Among the
signers were professors and architec-
tural historians: Marvin Schwartz,
Adolph Placzek, George Collins, James
Marston Fitch; writers: Louis Auchin-
closs, Clay Lancaster, Ada Louise
Huxtable; architects: Giorgio Cavag-
lieri, Philip Johnson and preservation
activists: Everett and Evelyn Ortner
and Margot Gayle.

The Chapter was officially recog-
nized on March 14, 1970, the first in the
country. In June it opened its own bank
account. It was quite a bit later before
the words “Metropolitan Chapter”
appeared on a letterhead. The first presi-
dent of the Chapter’s board was William
Dane, who was the principal librarian
for the art and music collections at the
Newark Public Library. The second was
Giorgio Cavaglieri, who designed the

library interiors for the former Jefferson  yilljam Tecumseh Sherman Monument. Central Park Conservancy Photo

Market Courthouse.

In 1972 membership in the Victorian
Society in America totaled 391, of whom
271 lived in the New York area. At that
time members joined the Victorian Society
in America and part of their dues payment
was rebated to the local chapter to which
they affiliated. Now memberships in the
local chapter and the parent society are
separate and only officers of the board
are required to also be members of the
national organization.

The Chapter has always been active
in preservation efforts in the city. Early
campaigns focused on the SoHo Cast Iron
Historic District (designated 1973) and Pier
A, the last surviving municipal pier (desig-
nated 1977). Then there was the New York
County (Tweed) Courthouse, the second
oldest surviving city government building
(designated 1984). The Chapter was instru-
mental in instigating and funding the first
restoration of Saint-Gaudens’ General
Sherman monument with a base designed
by Charles McKim in Grand Army Plaza at
Fifth Avenue and 59™ Street in Manhattan.
Recently (2015-16) board members responded

to the Landmarks Preservation Commis-
sion’s Backlogos initiative by preparing
testimony on 46 of 95 sites threatened with
de-calendaring and by appearing at all four
hearings on these items. Members of the
board also routinely attend and speak at
the City Planning Commission and the City
Council on issues important to our purpose.

Sponsorship of lectures on all aspects of
Victorian life and culture has been a major way
to fulfill the Society’s mission. At first some
were held at the CUNY Graduate Center on
42™ street and then, for many years, at Donnell
Library. After the library was demolished,
lectures were held at New Church (Sweden-
borgian) on 35% Street for several years, then at
the Dominican Academy on East 68" Street and
currently take place at the English Speaking
Union on East 39 Street. In addition the
Chapter has sponsored events in collaboration
with such other organizations as the Society of
Architectural Historians, Friends of Cast Iron
Architecture and Classical America.

The Chapter has no paid staff. All of
the Chapter’s work done by the board and,
occasionally, other member volunteers. It

has never maintained an office. Initially
Margot Gayle's home address was used; now
the Chapter receives mail at the Neigh-
borhood Preservation Center. In addition
there is a phone number where messages
can be recorded to be monitored periodi-
cally. At first board meetings were held in
members’ homes, but for a number of years
now they have been at St. Thomas Church
Parish House. Committee meetings are held
online or at members’ apartments. Despite
its all-volunteer status, the board organizes
eight lectures and seven or eight tours

plus several special events each year. One
of those events is a special lecture to raise
money for the Margot Gayle Fund for the
Preservation of Victorian Heritage. The fund
was established in 2003 with the express
purpose of providing grants for preserva-
tion projects and has since made monetary
awards to neighborhood groups, churches
and individuals.

The Chapter’s most recent achievement
is a redesigned website. Come visit

www.vicsocny.org. Mary Cope



(O $30 YOUNG VICTORIANS*

*Members age 35 and younger,
please provide a copy of your
valid ID.

(O $40 INDIVIDUAL*

*Seniors and full-time students
receive a $10 discount at this
level. Please provide a copy of
your valid ID.

O $60 DUAL*

*Seniors receive a $10
discount at this level.

() $75 CONTRIBUTOR

O $150 PATRON

O $250 SUSTAINER

(O $500 PRESIDENT’S CIRCLE

Please visit www.vicsocny.org for
a complete list of benefits and to
learn about Daniel D.

Badger Circle memberships.
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Join the VICTORIAN SOCIETY NEW YORK today!
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